BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

July 22, 2025 MINUTES

7:30 PM

Chairwoman Kates called the meeting to order at approximately 7:30 pm. Deputy Secretary Janeiro recited
the Open Public Meeting Statement and Pledge of Allegiance.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairwoman M. Kates, Vice Chairman S. Riordan, Secretary S. Raymond, Mr. E. Alter,
Mr. D. Friedman, Dr. A. Weinberg, Council Liason Trochimiuk and Mayor Sheinfield

MEMBERS ABSENT: Mr. S. Griep and Mr. S. Hipp

EMPLOYEES PRESENT: Mr. M. Leibman, Board Attorney
Mr. C. Statile, Board Engineer
Mr. T. Behrens, Board Planner
Ms. T. Janeiro, Deputy Secretary

OPEN TO PUBLIC (for matters not on the agenda):
The meeting was opened to the public for matters not on the agenda. There being none, the meeting was
closed to the public.

MEETING MINUTES
July 10, 2025

Motion Second Outcome

S. Raymond E. Alter Passed

RESOLUTION #2025-14

PZ-6-25

Block 605 Lot 9; 48 Wierimus Lane

Applicant: Roger Gross / Owner: Paul & Gayle Gross
Minor Subdivision

A motion was made by Secretary Raymond to approve the memorializing resolution. The motion was
seconded by Mr. Alter, and carried by a roll call vote as follows:

Vice Chairman Riordan Yes
Secretary Raymond Yes
Mr. Alter Yes
Dr. Weinberg Yes
Mayor Sheinfield Yes

Page 1 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

MINUTES 7:30PM

July 22, 2025

RESOLUTION #2025-15

PZ-3-25

Block 1108 Lot 3; 33 Beechwood Drive
Vincent & Mary Cashell

New Single-Family Home

A motion was made by Mr. Alter to approve the memorializing resolution. The motion was seconded by Dr.
Weinberg, and carried by a roll call vote as follows:

Vice Chairman Riordan Yes
Mr. Alter Yes
Mr. Friedman Yes
Dr. Weinberg Yes

CONTINUED APPLICATION

PZ-02-24

Block 1517 / Lot 13; 32 Riverdale Street

Michael and Fran Kanter

Existing Patio, Retaining Walls and Outdoor Kitchen
Impervious Coverage and Patio/Kitchen Setback

Attorney Joseph Marinello of Hartmann Doherty Rose Berman & Bulbulia in Hackensack, New Jersey, was
present for this hearing.

The applicants are:

Michael Kanter
32 Riverdale Street, Hillsdale

Fran Kanter
32 Riverdale Street, Hillsdale

This hearing is a continuation of the March 13, 2025 hearing. Previous testimony was presented on this
date, and Exhibit A-1, showing the existing and proposed location of the outdoor kitchen, was previously
marked.

Mr. Marinello went over the timeline of what his clients were originally seeking and discussed what they
are presenting to the board today. He said his clients built this kitchen in a location that they shouldn’t
have without any permits. Previously they presented a similar application to the board, and they were
denied. This was a costly mistake for The Kanter’s. The current proposal for the outdoor kitchen is now 7 %

Page 2 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

MINUTES 7:30PM

July 22, 2025

feet away from the neighbors, where 10 feet is required, and 2 % feet from the home. Mr. Marinello said
that there were some previous concerns regarding the proximity of the grill, but Mr. Statile stated that
there was no specific setback.

The structure cannot be moved too far without it collapsing. Also, the structure cannot be moved further
into the yard, as it would interfere with the flow of foot traffic.

Mr. Marinello said his client is suggesting two additional conditions that can be specified in the resolution.
They are as follows:

e Screening around the area that can be seen from the road, consisting of fencing or bushes.

e If the structure collapses when moved, the client will rebuild the structure within the allowable
setback area. Mr. Marinello pointed out that it is a great expense to move this structure, and it
cannot withstand a 20 ft. to 30 ft. move.

Mr. Marinello stated that he drove around the neighborhood and saw many new and old structures
throughout town. He went on to speak about the well-defined property lines.

Mr. Statile asked how far the structure will be from the principal dwelling. Mr. Marinello said 9 ft. Mr.
Statile commented that a variance will be required for that. Mr. Statile asked about the pavers behind the
existing structure. Mr. Marinello said some of them will be removed. The applicant is seeking the following
variances: impervious coverage, setback to principal building and patio setback.

Mr. Liebman swore in Mr. Kanter.

Board Questions of Mr. Marinello / Mr. Kanter:

Mr. Friedman — Asked for the impervious coverage calculations. He also asked if there are any cabinets in
the rear of the cabinet. Mr. Marinello discussed the impervious coverage calculations and said no cabinets

are in the rear of the cabinet.

Chairwoman Kates — Wanted to know if they spoke to the contractor regarding moving the structure. Mr.
Marinello said they previously knew it was not possible to move this structure too far.

Secretary Raymond — Asked what the size of the structure is. Four feet. Asked about why the grill and
structure are as large as it is. Mr. Kanter answered and said that they made a mistake giving their
contractor too much latitude.

Mr. Statile said granite is not easy to cut or move.
Chairwoman Kates asked Mr. Kanter to confirm that they have previously come before this board in 2013.

He said yes, but he is not well versed with land use regulations.
Page 3 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

MINUTES 7:30PM

July 22, 2025

Mayor Sheinfield — Asked who said it was hard to move the structure. Mr. Kanter said they spoke with
several contractors.

It was asked how this structure will be moved. Mr. Kanter said they will dig underneath and move with a
machine.

Secretary Raymond — Is there a foundation? Yes.

Vice Chairman Riordan — Doesn’t see why the structure can only be moved five feet. Mr. Marinello said he
doesn’t think the structure can be moved at all without causing harm to the structure.

Mr. Kanter said that Mr. Alter came by and saw their yard and where the structure is located. He said Mr.
Alter commented that he can see how complicated it is to move, and he can see how the location of the
rear doors and the structure in a conforming location would interfere with the flow of foot traffic.

Open to the public for questions or comments on this application.

There being none, the meeting was closed to the public.

Mr. Statile said if this structure is not able to withstand the move, they will still need a variance for
impervious coverage.

Vice Chairman Riordan asked about the slab and trench inspections.
Mr. Marinello said if the application is approved, his clients will work with Mr. Statile regarding screening.

Dr. Weinberg asked if the proposed location of the structure could be drawn onto a photo. He also
commented that he doesn’t think the rear steps should be an issue.

A motion was made by Mayor Sheinfield to approve the application with conditions. The motion was
seconded by Secretary Raymond and carried by a roll call vote as follows:

Vice Chairman Riordan No
Secretary Raymond Yes
Mr. Alter Yes
Mr. Friedman No
Dr. Weinberg Yes
Mayor Sheinfield Yes
Vice Chairman Riordan Yes
Chairwoman Kates No

Page 4 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

July 22, 2025 MINUTES

7:30 PM

CONTINUED HEARING
PzZ-02-25

Block 1308 Lot 1; 60 Broadway
Vartan Nazarian

Amended Minor Site Plan

This hearing is a continuation of a previous hearing that took place on June 12, 2025.

Attorney Stephen Sinisi from the Law Office of Stephen P. Sinisi, LLC, located in Paramus, New Jersey, was
present for this hearing.

The applicant is Mr. Vartan Nazarian.

Mr. Sinisi spoke about the application. He said this is a commercial upgrade only with a renovation of a gas
station with the inclusion of a canopy. This site has been a gas station since the 1930s.

Mr. Jasvinder Arjani is the applicant’s architect and will be testifying for this application. He was sworn in at
the June 12, 2025 hearing.

Mr. Statile submitted an updated review dated July 14, 2025 in response to the revised plans received from
the applicant on July 9, 2025.

Mr. Sinisi spoke about the changes on the revised plans. The changes are as follows:

e Sidewalks and curbing.

e Concrete pad and canopy detail.

e Renew the striping with reflective thermoplastic in conformance with the previously approved site
plans.

e Addition of a drywell for the canopy roof drainage in the northwest corner.

e The diesel only dispenser was removed.

e Addition of signage along Broadway indicating trucks and trailers will not pull into this site for
fueling.

e Vehicle circulation plan.

e Landscape island at the northwest corner once the site remediation has been completed.

e Canopy fascia height is reduced by one foot, and dentil moldings were added.

e Site lighting revised to 300K.

e New kiosk with brick facing.

Mr. Statile asked if the fascia will drop down to hide the lights. Mr. Sinisi said no, but this can be added to
the plans.

Page 5 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

July 22, 2025 MINUTES

7:30 PM

Mr. Behrens commented that the area of the monitoring wells will need to be enhanced with landscaping.
Mr. Sinisi said they will work with the borough.

Mr. Behrens said the board members were concerned with high-speed diesel pumps. Mr. Arjani said
previously there were individual pumps for gas and diesel; now they are all combined. They will not have
high-speed diesel pumps. Four automobiles can fill up now at the same time. This is not for tractor trailers
but for private cars, trucks and landscapers.

Mr. Behrens went over the previous approvals from 1967, 1995, 2007 and 2011. He said that the Dunkin
Donuts and motor vehicle service station constitute two distinct principal uses of the property. The site is
located in the C Commercial Zone, wherein the existing Dunkin Donuts is a permitted principal use and the
existing/proposed motor vehicle service station use is a permitted conditional use. He stated that this has
been a service station since 1938.

Secretary Raymond asked about landscaping. Mr. Arjani said landscaping will be installed by the northwest
corner of the property, by the free-standing sign. Once the site remediation and monitoring have been
completed, that area will be landscaped according to previous resolutions. Secretary Raymond suggested
showing these areas on the plans, pointing out the future landscaping.

A conversation regarding the dry well took place.

Vice Chairman Riordan doesn’t agree with the dentil moldings added.

Mr. Friedman asked about delivery trucks. Arjani said the truck that delivers the fuel is on site about once a
week. Otherwise, no tractor trailers will be on site. Mr. Friedman commented on the flow of traffic on site.

Chairwoman Kates asked if this was low-speed diesel. Mr. Arjani said yes, and this could be a condition of
the resolution.

Open to the public for questions of Mr. Arjani.
There being none, the meeting was closed to the public.

Mr. Michael Pessolano is the applicant’s planner and will be testifying for this application. He was sworn in
by Mr. Leibman and accepted as an expert witness.

Mr. Pessolano spoke about how this property has been a service station since 1938. This property is now a
pre-existing non-conforming use.

Mr. Pessolano spoke about the existing variance relief that is required.

Page 6 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

July 22, 2025 MINUTES

7:30 PM

Existing Bulk Variances

1. (310 Attachment 1) - Side Yard Setback for Building: 15 is required; 13.0 ft. existing to remain.

2. 310-58: Parking areas in commercial and industrial districts: Minimum parking
Setback from ROW: 10 ft. is required; 6.3ft. existing, to remain.

3. Size of Window Sign: 4.3 SF and 3.6 SF permitted (10% of window size); variance for 12 SF per size
previously issued

Existing Conditional Use Variances

4. Minimum fuel pump setback to lot line: 25f. is required; 16.3ft. is existing, 17ft. is

proposed

5. Maximum driveway width: 24 ft. is permitted; 46ft. existing to remain

6. Minimum driveway setback to intersection: 25ft. is required, O ft. existing to remain
7. Minimum landscape strip along lot lines: 5ft. is required, O ft. existing, to remain
8
9

Minimum distant to a public use/facility: 1,500ft. is required; less than 1,500 ft. existing to remain
. Maximum freestanding sign height: 8ft. is permitted; 16 ft. existing to remain
10. Maximum freestanding sign area: 24 sf is permitted; 68 SF existing to remain
11. Minimum freestanding sign setback from lot line: 10 ft. is required; O ft. existing to
Remain
12. Maximum building sign area: 24 SF is permitted; 27.33 SF existing to remain

New Bulk Variances

13. 310-55.H.(1): No detached accessory building shall be closer to any principal building than a
distance equal to the height of such accessory building. The canopy, by definition, is considered an
accessory structure. Required setback from principal structure is 22.0 ft. (canopy height) vs 13.5 ft.
proposed.

14. 310-55.H.(2): Accessory structure height. Maximum 15.0 ft. allowed vs. 22.0 ft. proposed.

15. 310-55.H.(3): Accessory structure in front yard. Not permitted vs. proposed.

Mr. Pessolano spoke about the positive criteria of this application. He explained how this application
promotes the general welfare for the public. Some positive additions were the additional light source and
the upgrade to the underground tanks.

Exhibit A-2 consisting of four sheets as follows was marked:
e Excerpt from Borough of Hillsdale Tax Assessor Map
e Excerpt from Borough of Hillsdale Zoning Map

e “Birds-Eye” View Ariel Image From Online Source
e Photos of Surrounding Areas to 60 Broadway

Page 7 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

MINUTES 7:30PM

July 22, 2025

Mr. Pessolano spoke about the negative criteria. He said there was no basis in finding any substantial
detriments for this application. He spoke about the canopy and site.

Mr. Pessolano spoke about the D-3 requirements.
A comment was made that fuel is fuel, and it doesn’t matter if it is diesel or gas. This service station is for
servicing passenger vehicles or commercial vehicles only. There should be no reason to have a distinction of

fuel sources.

A conversation was had pertaining to this being an accessory structure in the front yard. This is the only
place on site that this structure belongs, as this is where the pumps are located.

Mr. Pessolano spoke about the C2 variance.

Mr. Behrens discussed his review dated June 4, 2025 (attached). A conversation was had pertaining to D2
and D3 variances.

All members and professionals had a conversation pertaining to the canopy. Mr. Leibman said we want to
be careful we do not overanalyze these ordinances that were written many years ago, as land use often

moves faster than the ordinances. The canopy is over an existing gas station.

Several board questions were asked in discussion regarding the pumps. Mr. Sinisi commented that the
products are in the fuel line and nothing will be visual.

Dr. Weinberg spoke about his concerns with diesel fuel being offered at this location and parking.

Mr. Leibman said that limiting the high-speed fuel pumps will help with the type of vehicles coming into the
service station.

Mr. Friedman thanked all of the applicant’s professionals for the testimony and addressing the previous
issues and concerns. He asked if the lights will be turned off by 10:00 pm. Mr. Sinisi said yes. He also asked

about the design of the landscaping.

A discussion was had pertaining to the well on site. Mr. Arjani said the well doesn’t exist on the property. It
is located on Harrington Street.

Secretary Raymond asked if the entire site will be repaved. Mr. Sinisi said yes. He asked about the clogged
drains. Mr. Sinisi said the drains will be unclogged.

Open to the public for questions and comments on this application.

There being none, the meeting was closed to the public.

Page 8 of 9



BOROUGH OF HILLSDALE

Planning/ Zoning Board

July 22, 2025 MINUTES

7:30 PM

A discussion took place regarding the conditions board members wanted in the resolution. The conditions
are as follows:

e The landscaping will be restored when the monitoring wells have been removed.
e Slow flow pumps.

e Lights 3,000K.

e Sidewalks replaced 6” thick.

e All striping must be renewed after the lot is repaved.

e Shielding on light.

e Dentil molding will be up to the architect.

e Lights to be turned off by 10:00 p.m.

A motion was made by Mr. Friedman to approve the application with conditions. The motion was
seconded by Secretary Raymond and carried by a roll call vote as follows:

Vice Chairman Riordan Yes
Secretary Raymond Yes
Mr. Alter Yes
Mr. Friedman Yes
Dr. Weinberg Yes
Chairwoman Kates Yes
DISCUSSION

The August 26, 2025 meeting will be cancelled.

Chairwoman Kates spoke about the council wanting to put together facade guidance for any new buildings
being proposed in town. She mentioned that there already is an existing code on this. It was asked if DMR
Architects would be making a presentation on this matter. Chairwoman Kates said no, this is being done in-
house and Mayor Sheinfield will present to the board. This matter will be placed on a future agenda.

OPEN TO PUBLIC (for matters not on the agenda):
The meeting was opened to the public for matters not on the agenda. There being none, the meeting was
closed to the public.

ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting was adjourned.

Next Public Hearing - Thursday, August 14, 2025 7:30 pm; Borough Hall Council Chambers.

Page 9 of 9



